



# SWAINSBORO - METTER & Surrounding Areas

Quick Reference Guide..... 2  
 Schools Information..... 3  
 Local County Government ..... 3  
 Government Information.....4-8

FOR AN EMERGENCY DIAL

# 911



## Comments? Suggestions? Want to Advertise?

Contact Our Community Directory at 888-960-2949

or email us at: [ouryp@att.net](mailto:ouryp@att.net)

[www.ourcommunitydirectory.com](http://www.ourcommunitydirectory.com)

### EMERGENCY & IMPORTANT NUMBERS

American Red Cross .....912-764-4468  
 Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF).....912-650-6550  
 Child Abuse.....800-422-4453  
 Crime Victim Assistance .....800-338-6745  
 Domestic Violence Hotline .....800-799-7233  
 TTY .....800-787-3224  
 Drug Abuse Hotline.800-338-6745  
 Emergency Management Georgia.....800-879-4362  
 FBI.....800-679-9000  
 Georgia Bureau of Investigation .....478-374-6988  
 Missing and Exploited Children.....800-843-5678  
 TTY .....800-826-7653

Poison Center .....800-222-1222  
 Public Service Commission Georgia.....800-282-5813  
 Rape Sexual Assault Hotline .....800-656-4673  
 Suicide Crisis.....800-784-2433  
 Toxic Chemicals/Oil Spills.....800-424-8802  
 Traffic & Travel Information.. 511  
 U.S. Marshals Service .....912-489-4735  
 U.S. Secret Service912-652-4401  
 United Way Help & Referrals 211  
 Utilities—Call Before You Dig 811 Or .....800-282-7411

### FIRE DEPARTMENTS

Cobbtown .....912-684-3333  
 Kite Volunteer .....478-469-5186  
 Metter.....912-685-6832  
 Portal .....912-865-2865  
 Soperton.....912-529-4400  
 Stillmore .....912-562-7046

Summertown Volunteer .....478-237-9561  
 Swainsboro .....478-237-3473  
 Swainsboro Southside.....478-237-9561  
 Twin City.....478-763-2695

### POLICE DEPARTMENTS

Adrian .....478-668-3376  
 Garfield .....478-763-4316  
 Metter .....912-685-5437  
 Midville .....478-589-7511  
 Portal .....912-865-5330  
 Stillmore .....912-562-3472  
 Soperton.....912-529-4221  
 Swainsboro .....478-237-8967  
 Twin City.....478-763-4140

### SHERIFF

Candler County .....912-685-2568  
 Emanuel County ...478-237-7526  
 Toombs County ....912-526-6778

### STATE POLICE PATROL

Reidsville.....912-557-7778





**AIRLINES**

- Alaska Airlines.....1-800-426-0333
- American Airlines.....1-800-433-7300
- British Airways.....1-800-247-9297
- Delta.....1-800-221-1212
- Frontier.....1-800-452-2022
- Hawaiian Airlines.....1-800-367-5320
- JetBlue.....1-800-538-2583
- Mesa Airlines.....1-800-637-2247
- Southwest.....1-800-435-9792
- Spirit.....1-800-772-7117
- United.....1-800-241-6522
- United Airlines.....1-800-525-0280
- US Airways.....1-800-428-4322
- Virgin America.....1-877-359-8474

**CHAMBERS OF COMMERCE**

- Greater Tattnall Chamber of Commerce.....912-557-6323
- Metter-Candler County Chamber.....912-685-2159
- Soperton Chamber of Commerce.....912-529-6868
- Swainsboro-Emanuel County Chamber.....478-237-6427

**CITY HALL/ ADMINISTRATION**

- Adrian.....478-668-3376
- Cobbtown.....912-684-3448
- Garfield.....478-763-3264
- Kite.....478-469-3866
- Metter.....912-685-2527
- Nunez.....912-562-3701
- Portal.....912-865-2566
- Soperton.....912-529-6174
- Summertown.....478-237-3422
- Twin City.....478-763-2695

**CABLE PROVIDERS**

- Comcast.....1-888-266-2278
- Northland Communications.....478-237-6434
- Pineland Telephone Co-Op.....912-685-2121
- Reynolds Cable TV, Inc.....478-237-6900

**DRIVERS LICENSES**

- Georgia Department of Driver Services.....404-657-9300
- State Patrol (Statesboro).....912-681-5999

**ELECTRICITY PROVIDERS**

- Altamaha Electric Membership Corporation.....912-526-8181
- .....478-237-2477
- Excelsior EMC.....478-685-2155
- Georgia Power Company
- Residential.....888-660-5890
- Business.....888-655-5888
- Power Outage.....888-891-0938

**EMERGENCY**

- EMERGENCY DIAL.....911

**GAS (NATURAL)**

- Atlanta Gas Light.....800-427-5463
- Gas Leak.....877-427-4321
- Walton EMC.....866-936-2427
- Gas Leak.....877-427-4321

**GAS (PROPANE)**

- Diamond Propane Services.....478-237-8702
- Ferrellgas.....912-681-4427
- Suburban Propane.....478-237-7377
- Truflame Gas.....912-764-7383

**HOSPITALS**

- Candler County Hospital.....912-685-5741
- East Georgia Regional Med Center.....912-486-1000
- Emanuel Medical Center.....478-289-1100
- Evans Memorial Hospital.....912-739-2611
- Meadows Regional Medical Center.....912-739-8921
- The Doctors Hospital of Tattnall.....912-557-1000

**LIBRARIES**

- L.C. Anderson Library (Metter).....912-685-2455
- Franklin Memorial Library (Swainsboro).....478-237-7791
- Tattnall County Library (Reidsville).....912-557-6247

**POST OFFICES**

- For Information Dial.....1-800-275-8777
- Adrian 102 West Main St.....478-668-3380
- Garfield 213 Monroe St.....478-763-2666
- Kite 1122 Railroad St.....478-469-5127
- Metter East Broad St.....912-685-4165
- Nunez 8451 Ga Hwy 297.....912-562-3778
- Stillmore 205 North 2nd St.....912-562-3247
- Swainsboro 211 West Moring St.....478-237-9689
- Twin City 227 Old Swainsboro Rd.....478-763-2295

**TELEPHONE SERVICE & REPAIR**

- AT&T
- Residential.....800-464-7928
- Business.....800-499-7928
- Residential (Repair).....800-246-8464
- Business (Repair).....800-286-8313
- Español.....800-559-0050
- TTY/TDD.....800-682-8706
- CenturyLink.....866-863-9428
- Cox Business.....888-313-1205
- Pineland Telephone Co-Op.....912-685-2121
- Progressive Rural Tel Co-Op Inc.....478-984-4201

**TRANSPORTATION**

- AMTRAK.....800-872-7245
- Emanuel County Airport.....478-237-7025
- Greyhound Bus Lines.....912-232-9135
- Metter Municipal Airport.....912-685-4162
- Savannah/Hilton Head Intl Airprt.....912-964-0514
- Vidalia Airport.....912-537-3979

**VETERANS SERVICES**

- General Information.....800-827-1000

**WATER & SEWAGE**

- Adrian (City).....478-668-3376
- Metter (City).....912-685-2658
- Stillmore.....912-562-3529
- Swainsboro (City).....478-237-7025
- Soperton.....912-529-4848
- Twin City.....478-763-2695
- ADRIAN City Hall.....478-668-3376
- COBBTOWN City Hall.....912-684-3448
- KITE City of.....478-469-3866
- METTER City Hall.....912-685-2527
- Fire Dept Business.....912-685-6832
- Mayor's Office.....912-685-2776
- Police Dept Business.....912-685-5437
- Public Works.....912-685-2618
- Purchasing.....912-685-7845
- Water Works.....912-685-2658
- NUNEZ City of.....912-562-3701
- OAK PARK City Hall.....912-578-4115
- PORTAL City Hall.....912-865-2566
- Police Dept Business.....912-865-2561
- SOPERTON City Hall.....912-529-6174
- STILLMORE City Hall.....912-562-3529
- SWAINSBORO
- Animal Shelter.....478-237-4040
- Chief of Police.....478-237-8967
- City Clerk.....478-237-7025
- Fire Dept Business.....478-237-8533
- Public Works.....478-237-5078
- Waste Water.....478-237-6738
- TWIN CITY City Hall.....478-763-2695





**CANDLER COUNTY SCHOOLS**

**Candler County Board of Education**  
 210 S College St Metter ..... 912-685-5713  
**Metter Elementary School**  
 210 S College St Metter ..... 912-685-2058  
**Metter Intermediate School**  
 423 West Vertia St Metter ... 912-685-7400  
**Metter Middle School**  
 423 West Vertia St Metter ... 912-685-5580  
**Metter High School**  
 34905 Hwy 129 Metter ..... 912-685-2134



**EMANUEL COUNTY SCHOOLS**

**Adrian School of Performing Arts**  
 201 N Hall St Adrian ..... 478-668-3206  
**Crossroads Alternative**  
 102 N College St Twin City.. 478-237-8544  
**David Emanuel Academy**  
 602 N 4th St Stillmore..... 912-562-4405  
**Emanuel County Board of Education**  
 201 N Main St Swainsboro.. 478-237-6674  
**Emanuel County Institute**  
 102 N College St Twin City.. 478-763-2673  
**Swainsboro Primary School**  
 308 Tiger Tr Swainsboro ..... 478-237-8302  
**Swainsboro Elementary School**  
 258 Tiger Tr Swainsboro ..... 478-237-7266  
**Swainsboro Middle School**  
 200 Tiger Tr Swainsboro ..... 478-237-8047  
**Swainsboro High School**  
 689 South Main Street Swbo478-237-2267  
**Twin City Elementary School**  
 162 Parrish Pond Rd  
 Twin City..... 478-763-2253

**TREUTLEN COUNTY SCHOOLS**

**Board of Education**  
 202 Third St Soperton ..... 912-529-4228  
**Treutlen Elementary School**  
 1062 Jennings Lane  
 Soperton..... 912-529-4911  
**Treutlen Middle School**  
 4145 Fowler St Soperton..... 912-529-3214  
**Treutlen High School**  
 1201 Holland Place  
 Soperton..... 912-529-4536



**LOCAL COUNTY GOVERNMENT**

**CANDLER COUNTY GOVERNMENT**

**Board of Registrars**..... 912-685-6687  
**Clerk of Court**..... 912-685-5257  
**County Information** ..... 912-685-2835  
**Dept of Human Svcs**..... 1-877-423-4746  
**Family & Child Services**.... 912-685-2163  
**Juvenile Court**..... 912-685-5257  
**Magistrate Court**..... 912-685-2888  
**Municipal Court** ..... 912-685-5437  
**Probate Court**..... 912-685-2357  
**Superior Court** ..... 912-685-5257  
**State Court** ..... 912-685-5257  
**Tag Offices** ..... 912-685-5247



**EMANUEL COUNTY GOVERNMENT**

**Board of Registrars**  
**Clerk of Court** ..... 478-237-8911  
**County Commission**  
**Offices** ..... 478-237-3881  
**County Jail** ..... 478-237-8771  
**Dept of Human Svcs**  
**Family & Child Services**  
**Juvenile Court**  
**Magistrate Court** ..... 478-237-7278  
**Municipal / Probate Court** 478-237-7091  
**Sheriff's Office** ..... 478-237-7526  
**Superior / State Court** ..... 478-237-7551  
**Tag Offices (Tax Commissioner)** 478-237-3351  
**Voter Reg. Office** ..... 478-237-3471







**STATE GOVERNMENT**

**GEORGIA STATE OF**

**Directory Information/**

Assistance ..... 800-436-7442  
 Accounting Office ..... 404-656-2133  
 Administrative Hearings  
 Office of State ..... 404-675-2800  
 Administrative Office  
 of the Court-Atlanta..... 404-656-5171  
 Administrative Services  
 Department..... 404-656-5514  
 Fleet Management  
 Services..... 404-656-8544  
 Mail & Courier Document  
 Services..... 404-656-5522  
 Risk Management  
 Services..... 404-656-6245  
 State Purchasing Services 404-657-6000  
 Surplus Property ..... 404-414-6468  
 Adult Protective Services..... 888-774-0152  
 Aging Services..... 404-657-5258  
 Agriculture Department..... 404-656-3645  
 TTY ..... 404-657-8387  
 Americans with Disabilities  
 Act Coordinator..... 404-657-7313  
 TTY ..... 404-657-9993  
 Atlanta Regional Commission. 404-463-3100  
 Attorney General ..... 404-656-3300  
 Audits & Accounts Dept..... 404-656-0493  
 Banking and Finance Dept .. 888-986-1633  
 Bar of Georgia State..... 404-527-8700  
 Birth and Death Records ..... 404-679-4702  
 Boat Registration Office..... 800-366-2661  
 Brain & Spinal Injury Trust Fund  
 Commission ..... 888-233-5760  
 Building Authority Georgia... 404-656-3253  
 Bureau of Investigation  
 Georgia ..... 404-244-2600  
 Child Advocate Office ..... 800-254-2064  
 Child Care Resources ..... 800-466-5681  
 Child Support Services ..... 800-277-7993  
 Children & Youth  
 Coordinating Council ..... 404-508-6574  
 College Savings Plan of GA 404-463-0000  
 Community Affairs Dept..... 404-679-4940  
 Community Health Dept ..... 404-656-4507  
 Composite State Board of  
 Medical Examiners ..... 404-656-3913  
 Consumer Affairs Office ..... 404-651-8600  
 Corrections Department ..... 404-656-9772  
 Council for the Arts..... 404-685-2787  
 TTY ..... 404-685-2799  
 Court of Appeals..... 404-656-3450  
 Courts Automation  
 Commission Georgia ..... 404-651-7614

Criminal Justice Coordinating  
 Council..... 404-657-1956  
 Crisis and Access Line ..... 800-715-4225  
 Defense Department  
 Adjutant General's Office.. 678-569-6001  
 Georgia Air National  
 Guard ..... 678-655-4040  
 Georgia Army National  
 Guard ..... 678-569-5252  
 Development Authority GA.. 770-414-3400  
 Developmental Disabilities  
 Council..... 404-657-2120  
 TTD..... 404-657-2133  
 Dispute Resolution  
 Commission ..... 404-463-3788  
 Domestic Violence..... 800-334-2836  
 Driver Services Dept..... 678-413-8400  
 Drugs & Narcotics Agency... 404-656-5100  
 Early Child & Learning Dept 404-656-5957  
 Economic Development Dept 404-962-4000  
 Education Department..... 800-311-3627  
 Employees' Retirement  
 System..... 404-350-6300  
 Environmental Facilities  
 Authority..... 400-584-1000  
 Equal Opportunity  
 Commission ..... 404-656-1736  
 Ethics Commission..... 404-493-1980  
 Fatherhood Program ..... 404-679-1697  
 Financing & Investment Commission State  
 Construction Division ..... 404-463-5600  
 Financing & Investment  
 Division ..... 404-463-5700  
 Fire Marshall..... 404-656-2064  
 Firefighter Standards &  
 Training Council..... 478-993-4521  
 Fishing & Hunting Licenses. 800-366-2661  
 Forestry Commission..... 800-428-7337  
 General Assembly  
 House of Representatives  
 Clerk's Office ..... 404-656-5016  
 Senate Secretary ..... 404-656-5040  
 Georgia Relay..... 711  
 Customer Service  
 (Voice/TTY)..... 866-694-5824  
 Golf Hall of Fame..... 706-724-4443  
 Governor..... 404-656-1776  
 Health Care Fraud Control .. 770-414-3640  
 Herty Advance Materials  
 Development Center..... 912-963-2600  
 Highway Safety Office ..... 404-656-6996  
 Holocaust Commission..... 404-370-3056  
 Homeland Security Georgia 404-635-7030  
 Human Resources Department  
 Adoption Office ..... 888-460-2467  
 Aging Services Division .... 866-552-4464

Child Support Enforcement.. 800-227-7993  
 Crisis and Access Line ..... 800-715-4225  
 Domestic Violence..... 800-334-2836  
 Family & Children Services.. 404-651-9361  
 Health Care Resources .... 800-982-4723  
 Human Resources  
 Management Office ..... 404-656-6750  
 PeachCare for Kids..... 877-427-3224  
 Public Health Division ..... 404-657-2700  
 Regulatory Services Office 404-657-1453  
 Vital Records ..... 404-679-4702  
 Humanities Council..... 404-523-6220  
 Inspector General ..... 404-656-7924  
 Insurance & Safety Fire  
 Commissioner..... 404-656-2070  
 Fire Marshall ..... 404-656-2064  
 Jekyll Island State  
 Park Authority ..... 877-453-5955  
 Juvenile Justice  
 Department..... 404-508-6500  
 Labor Department  
 Commissioner..... 404-232-7300  
 General Information..... 404-656-6000  
 Career Center Admin..... 404-232-3540  
 Employment Programs/  
 Services..... 404-232-3515  
 Labor Market Information .... 404-232-3875  
 Rehabilitation Services ..... 404-232-3910  
 TTY ..... 404-232-3911  
 Unemployment Insurance. 404-232-3990  
 Customer Service ..... 877-709-8185  
 Lake Allatoona Preservation  
 Authority..... 678-801-4010  
 Lieutenant Governor..... 404-656-5030  
 Lottery Corporation Georgia 404-215-5000  
 Player Information Line..... 800-425-8259  
 Maternal & Infant Health  
 Council..... 404-657-2866  
 Medical Education Board..... 404-206-5420  
 Medical Examiners  
 Composite State Board..... 404-656-3913  
 Motor Vehicle Safety Dept... 404-362-6500  
 Commercial Vehicle  
 Permits ..... 404-675-6153  
 Drivers License  
 Information ..... 678-413-8400  
 Motor Vehicle Tag & Title 404-362-6500  
 Music Hall of Fame..... 478-751-3334  
 National Fair Grounds &  
 Agricenter ..... 800-987-3247  
 National Resource  
 Department..... 404-656-3500  
 Coastal Resources Division 912-264-7218  
 Environmental Protection  
 Division ..... 404-657-5947  
 Historic Preservation Divi.. 404-656-2840





**STATE GOVERNMENT (Cont'd)**  
**Georgia State Of (Cont'd)**

Pollution Prevention  
 Assistance Division ..... 404-651-5120  
 State Parks & Historic Sites 404-656-2770  
 Wildlife Resources Division. 770-918-6400  
 Boat Registration Office.... 800-366-2661  
 Fishing & Hunting Licenses. 800-366-2661  
 Poacher & Polluter  
 Tip Line ..... 800-241-4113  
 Non Public Post Secondary  
 Education Commission..... 770-414-3300  
 Pardons & Paroles Board .... 404-657-9350  
 Path2College 529 Plan..... 877-424-4377  
 Parol Georgia State ..... 404-264-7000  
 Emergencies Only ..... 404-624-6077  
 TTD..... 800-443-6077  
 Peace Officer Standards &  
 Training Council..... 770-732-5974  
 Peace Officers' Annuity &  
 Benefit Fund ..... 770-228-8461  
 Physician Workforce Board. 404-206-5420  
 Planning & Budget Office .... 404-656-3820  
 Ports Authority Georgia ..... 800-342-8012  
 Professional Standards  
 Commission ..... 404-232-2500  
 Status Line..... 404-232-2510  
 Properties Commission State 404-656-5602  
 Prosecution Attorneys  
 Council of Georgia ..... 404-969-4001  
 Public Broadcasting Georgia 404-685-2400  
 Public Defender  
 Standards Council ..... 404-232-8900  
 Public Safety Department.... 404-624-7000  
 Driver's License Services 678-413-8400  
 Public Safety Training Center. 478-993-4000  
 Public School Employees'  
 Retirement System ..... 404-350-6300  
 Public Service Commission. 404-656-4501  
 Rail Passenger Authority GA. 404-463-0956  
 Real Estate Commission &  
 Appraisers Board ..... 404-656-3916  
 Regents Board..... 404-656-2250  
 Regional Transportation  
 Authority Georgia..... 404-463-3000  
 Relay Service for the  
 Hearing Impaired ..... 711  
 Or Voice Users ..... 866-787-6710  
 Customer Service  
 (Voice/TTY) ..... 866-694-5824  
 Revenue Department ..... 404-417-4477  
 Road Conditions ..... 404-635-6800  
 Road & Tollway Authority .... 404-893-6100  
 Cruise Card Applications .. 404-893-6161  
 School Superintendent State 404-656-2800

Secretary of State..... 404-656-2881  
 Archives & History Division 678-364-3700  
 Capitol Museum..... 404-656-2846  
 Capitol Tours &  
 Information Desk ..... 404-656-2844  
 Corporations Division..... 404-656-2817  
 Elections Division..... 404-656-2817  
 Press Office ..... 404-656-4269  
 Professional Licensing  
 Boards Division ..... 478-207-2440  
 Securities and Business  
 Regulations Division ..... 404-656-3920  
 South Georgia Office ..... 229-391-3732  
 Senate Georgia..... 404-656-0028  
 Soil & Water Conservation  
 Commission ..... 706-542-3065  
 Spatial Data Infrastructure  
 Georgia ..... 404-385-0900  
 Sports Hall of Fame  
 Authority ..... 478-752-1585  
 State Bar..... 800-334-6865  
 State Patrol..... 404-624-7000  
 Emergencies Only ..... 404-624-6077  
 TDD ..... 800-443-6077  
 State Personnel  
 Administration ..... 404-656-2705  
 Stone Mountain Memorial  
 Association ..... 770-498-5658  
 Student Achievement  
 Office ..... 404-463-1150  
 Student Finance Commission  
 Georgia ..... 770-724-9000  
 Subsequent Injury  
 Trust Fund ..... 404-656-7000  
 TDD ..... 404-206-5053  
 Superior Court Clerks' Cooperative  
 Authority..... 404-327-9058  
 Supreme Court Georgia ..... 404-656-3470  
 Teachers Retirement System 404-352-6500  
 Technical & Adult Education  
 Department..... 404-679-1600  
 Technology Authority  
 Georgia ..... 404-463-2300  
 Telecommunications Relay Service .... 711  
 Customer Service  
 (Voice/TTY)..... 866-694-5824  
 Tourist Information..... 800-847-4843  
 Transportation Department.. 404-631-1990  
 Treasury & Fiscal  
 Services Office..... 404-656-2168  
 Georgia College  
 Savings Plan ..... 404-463-0000  
 Unemployment Insurance.... 404-232-3001  
 Veterans Services Dept..... 404-656-2300  
 Information ..... 404-656-5933

Vital Records ..... 404-679-4702  
 Workforce Development  
 Office ..... 404-463-5030  
 Workers' Compensation  
 Board ..... 404-656-3875  
 Case Status/Claims  
 Assistance ..... 404-656-3818  
 Medical Claims  
 Coordinator..... 404-463-0563  
 World Congress Center  
 Authority Georgia..... 404-223-4000

**UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT**

<http://www.usa.gov>  
 Main number ..... 800-FED-INFO  
**ADOPTION**  
 General Information ..... 800-862-3678  
**AGING, ADMINISTRATION ON**  
<http://aoa.gov>  
 Eldercare Locator ..... 800-677-1116  
**AIDS AND SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASE INFORMATION**  
 General Number ..... 800-232-4636  
**AIR FORCE, DEPT OF**  
 Recruiting-see listing under Recruiting  
**ALCOHOL AND DRUG TREATMENT REFERRALS**  
 General Information ..... 800-662-HELP  
**ALCOHOL AND TOBACCO TAX AND TRADE BUREAU**  
<http://www.ttb.gov>  
 National Revenue Center  
 550 Main St. Ste. 8002  
 Cincinnati, OH 45202..... 877-TTB-FAQS  
 Alcohol Fuel Plants and users of  
 Tax Free Alcohol ..... 877-TTB-FAQS  
 Federal Alcohol Permits. 877-TTB-FAQS  
 Federal Tobacco  
 Permits ..... 877-TTB-FAQS  
 Special Occupational Tax and  
 Registration ..... 800-937-8864  
 Firearms and Ammunition  
 Excise Tax ..... 877-TTB-FAQS  
**ALCOHOL, TOBACCO, FIREARMS & EXPLOSIVE, BUREAU OF**  
<http://www.atf.gov>  
 Recruitment and  
 Hiring Center ..... 202-927-5690  
 Arson Hotline ..... 888-ATF-FIRE  
 Explosive Hotline ..... 888-ATF-BOMB  
 Firearms Hotline ..... 800-ATF-GUNS  
 Tips Line ..... 888-ATF-TIPS





# 6

## GOVERNMENT INFORMATION

© 2015-2016 Our Community Directory

### United States Government Cont'd

#### ARMY, DEPT OF

Recruiting - see listing under Recruiting  
**AVIATION**

See listing under consumer hotlines and  
Federal Aviation Administration

#### BANKING

<http://www.occ.treas.gov>  
Comptroller of the currency, office of  
Public Information Room 202-874-5043  
Customer Assistance  
Hotline .....800-613-6743  
See also listing under Money

#### BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

<http://www.blm.gov>

#### CANCER INFORMATION SERVICE, NCI

<http://www.cancer.gov>  
Main Number .....800-4-CANCER  
TTY .....800-332-8615

<http://www.smokefree.gov>

Smoking Quitline.....877-44U-QUIT

#### CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION

<http://www.cdc.gov>  
General Information .....404-639-3311  
Disease, safety and Health Risk  
Information .....800-232-4636

#### CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT

General Information .....800-422-4453

#### CHILD HELATH INSURANCE PROGRAM

General Information .....877-543-7669

#### COAST GUARD

<http://www.uscgboating.org>  
Boating Safety Information  
Recruiting - see listing under Recruiting

#### COMMERCE, DEPT OF

<http://www.doc.gov>

#### CONGRESS

Senators  
<http://www.senate.gov>  
Capital Switchboard .....202-224-3121  
Representatives  
<http://www.house.gov>  
Capital switchboard .....202-225-3121

#### CONSUMER HOTLINES

Air Travel Consumer  
Complaints .....202-366-2220  
Auto Safety Hotline .....800-424-9393  
Aviation Consumer .....800-FAA-SURE  
Aviation Safety Hotline.....800-255-1111  
Hazardous Materials  
Spills or Pipeline  
Leaks 24 hours a day .....800-424-8802

#### CONSUMER INFORMATION CENTER, FEDERAL - FCIC

<http://www.pueblo.gsa.gov>  
For FCIC Catalog.....888-8-PUEBLO

#### CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION

<http://www.cpsc.gov> .....800-638-2772  
TTY .....800-638-8270

#### CUSTOMS AND BORDER PROTECTION

<http://www.cbp.gov>  
Criminal Violations .....800-BE-ALERT  
General Information .....877-287-8667

#### DEAF, HARD OF HEARING AND SPEECH DISABLE

Federal Relay Service  
<http://www.gsa.gov/frs>  
TTY/Voice/ASCI I/Spanish  
To initiate Calls .....800-877-8339  
FRS Customer Service...800-877-0996  
TTY Federal Online Directory  
TTY & ASCII Users Only...800-877-8845

#### DEFENSE, DEPT OF

Defense Finance and Accounting  
Service Information Line.888-332-7411

#### DISABILITIES

Civil Rights .....202-366-4070  
Transit Only .....888-446-4511  
TTY .....800-877-8339

#### DISASTER/EMERGENCIES

Geological Survey, US  
<http://www.usgs.gov>

#### DISCRIMINATION

Transportation Services  
External Policy And Program  
Development.....202-366-4070

#### DOMESTIC VIOLENCE HOTLINE

General Information .....800-799-7233

#### EARTH SCIENCE

<http://www.usgs.gov>  
USGS Science  
Information And Library  
Services.....888-ASK-USGS

#### EDUCATION, DEPT OF

<http://www.ed.gov>  
General information .....800-872-5327  
TTY .....800-437-0833  
Borrowers who owe defaulted  
Student loans .....800-621-3115

#### ENVIRONMENT

<http://www.usgs.gov>  
Water, Biology, Geology and  
Geography .....888-ASK-USGA

#### FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

<http://www.faa.gov>  
FAA Services  
Aeronautical Charts .....800-638-8972  
Aircraft Registration .....405-954-3116  
Weather & Flight Plans 800-WX-BRIEF  
Or .....800-992-7433  
Pilot Certification .....405-954-3205

Pilot medical

Certification .....405-954-4821  
Public/Publications  
Information .....202-267-3484  
Aviation hotlines - see listing under  
consumer hotlines

#### FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

<http://www.fcc.gov>  
445 12th St SW, Washington, DC 20554  
Consumer Information  
Center.....888-225-5322  
TTY .....888-835-5322  
Fax .....866-418-0232  
Forms Distribution Center.800-418-3676  
Inspector General  
Fraud, Waste and Abuse 888-863-2244

#### FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION

550 17th St NW,  
Washington, DC.....877-275-3342

#### FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY - FEMA

National Flood Insurance Program  
See listing under flood

#### FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

<http://www.ftc.gov>  
General Information .....877-FTC-HELP  
Or .....877-382-4357

#### FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE

<http://www.fws.gov>  
National Program Guide  
Refuges, Endangered Species,  
Information For Teachers, Migratory  
Birds, Volunteers, Duck, Stamp  
Fisheries Conservation .....800-344-9453

#### FLOOD

National flood insurance  
program .....800-427-2354

#### FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION

General Information and  
Consumer Complaints .....888-463-6332

#### GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATIONS - GSA

Auto auction hotline .....800-472-2886  
Inspector General  
Fraud, waste and Abuse 800-424-5210  
National Customer Service  
Center .....800-488-3111  
Sale and Transfer of  
federal real estate.....800-472-1313  
Small business utilization,  
office of .....888-633-4472

#### GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, US

See USGS listing under  
National Resources





**United States Government Cont'd  
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS**

Information line .....800-467-4922  
Registration Assistance ....800-942-6990  
Safety.....800-467-4922  
Safety initiatives and  
training.....202-366-4900  
Transport by air.....202-267-3952

**HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,  
DEPT OF**

<http://hhs.gov>  
<http://healthfinder.gov>  
HHS Information .....877-696-6775  
Discrimination  
Complaints .....800-368-1019  
<http://hhs.gov/ocr>  
TTY .....800-537-7697  
Inspector General  
Fraud, waste and abuse.800-447-8477  
TTY.....800-377-4950

**HEALTH CARE INFORMATION FOR  
HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONALS  
AND CONSUMERS**

Information and  
Publications .....800-358-9295  
TTY.....888-586-6340

**HORSES**

Wild horses and  
burro adoption .....866-468-7826

**HOUSING**

Housing and urban development, dept of  
<http://www.hud.gov>  
Housing/FHA  
FHA Resource Center for FHA  
Mortgages and HUD Homes  
[hud@custhelp.com](mailto:hud@custhelp.com)  
General Information.....800-CALLFHA  
TTY .....877-833-2483  
Housing Counseling for  
Home buyers & renters ..800-569-4287  
Housing Discrimination  
hotline.....800-669-9777  
TTY.....800-927-9275

**IMMUNIZATION AND INFLUENZA - FLU**

General information .....800-232-4636

**INDIAN PROGRAMS AND SERVICES,  
AMERICAN**

Indian Affairs, bureau of  
[http://www.doi.gov/  
bureau-indian-affairs.html](http://www.doi.gov/bureau-indian-affairs.html)  
Indian health service see IHS office list  
<http://www.ihs.gov>

**INTERIOR, DEPT OF**

<http://www.doi.gov>  
The nation's principal Conservation  
agency responsible for most nationally  
owned public land and natural resources  
1849 C. St NW. Washington DC 20240  
General Information  
and locator.....202-208-3100  
Inspector general  
Fraud, Waste and Abuse 800-424-5081  
TTY.....800-354-0996

**INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE**

<http://www.irs.gov>  
Need a tax form .....800-829-3676  
24 hr/day recorded tax info800-829-4477  
24 hr/day refund status  
- Self serve .....800-829-4477  
Tax help line - Individuals.800-829-1040  
Business/specialty tax line 800-829-4933  
Refund hotline.....800-829-1954  
TTY.....800-829-4059  
Report Tax  
Fraud Violations .....800-829-0433  
Tax Exempt/govt Entities ..877-829-5500

**LABOR DEPT OF**

<http://www.dol.gov>  
General Information.....866-4USADOL  
Or .....866-487-2365  
TTY.....877-889-5627  
For job training and employment  
Information .....877-US2-JOBS  
Or .....877-872-5627  
Fraud, Waste and abuse .800-347-3756  
Employee Benefits security  
Administration -EBSA  
Health benefits, COBRA, Pensions,  
Retirement saving .....866-444-3272  
Wage & Hour division ..866-4US-WAGE

**LAW ENFORCEMENT**

See Listing under Alcohol, Tobacco,  
Firearms and Explosives, Bureau of

**MAPS**

USGS Science Information and  
Library Services .....888-ASK-USGS

**MARINE CORPS**

Recruiting - See listing under Recruiting

**MARITIME INDUSTRY INFORMATION**

Maritime Administration  
Information on merchant mariner  
employment, training, awards,  
shipbuilding .....800-99-MARAD  
Registration/Documentation  
- Ships .....800-799-8362

**MATERIAL AND CHILD HEALTH**

General Information .....703-356-1964

**MEDICARE**

General Information .....800-633-4227  
TTY.....877-486-2048  
Eligibility and Medicare Card  
Issue or Replacement ....800-772-1213

**MENTAL HEALTH**

General Information .....800-789-2647

**MINERAL RESOURCES**

Minerals Management Service  
<http://www.mms.gov>  
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation  
and Enforcement  
<http://www.osmre.gov>  
USGS Mineral.....888-ASK-USGS

**MONEY**

Engraving and Printing Bureau of  
<http://www.bep.treas.gov>  
Damaged/Mutilated  
Currency .....202-874-2361  
Mail Order Sales .....202-874-3315  
Media/Tour/Collector Info202-874-3019

**NATIONAL ARCHIVES AND RECORDS  
ADMINISTRATION**

<http://www.archives.gov>  
General Information  
Recording .....866-272-6272

**NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICES CORPS**

Application Information .....800-221-9393

**NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF HEALTH**

<http://www.nih.gov>  
9000 Rockville Pike, Bethesda, MD  
20814  
General Information .....301-496-4000  
TTY.....800-438-8832  
Public Information Office...301-496-5787

**NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS  
BOARD**

<http://www.nlr.gov>  
General Information .....866-667-6572  
TTY.....866-315-6572

**NATIONAL PARK SERVICE**

<http://www.nps.gov>

**NATIONAL PRACTITIONER DATA  
BANK**

Application Information .....800-767-6732

**NATIONAL RESOURCES**

Geological Survey, US..888-ASK-USGS  
<http://www.usgs.gov>

**NAVY, DEPT OF**

Recruiting-see listing under recruiting

**OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND  
HEALTH - NIOSH**

General Information .....800-356-4674

**PASSPORTS**

<http://travel.state.gov>  
Detailed Information.....877-487-2778  
TTY.....888-874-7793

**PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE**

600 Dulany St., Alexandria, VA  
General Patent and Trademark  
Information .....800-786-9199  
TTY.....571-272-9950  
Human Resources .....571-272-6000  
Public Affairs.....571-272-8400





**United States Government Cont'd**

**PEACE CORPS**

Information..... 800-424-8580  
Inspector General  
Fraud, Waste  
and Abuse ..... 800-233-5874

**PERMITS**

Alcohol - Federal  
Permit Requirements..... 877-882-3277  
Tobacco Manufacturing  
and Exporting ..... 877-882-3277  
Explosives - Federal  
Requirements ..... 404-417-2750  
Gun Dealers - Federal  
Requirements ..... 404-417-2750  
See also listing under Alcohol, Tobacco,  
Firearms and Explosives, Bureau of

**POSTAL SERVICE**

<http://www.usps.com>..... 800-ASK-USPS  
TTY-Hearing Impaired  
Only ..... 877-877-7833  
Express Mail Tracking, Signature and  
Delivery Confirmation ..... 800-222-1811  
Stamps by Phone ..... 800-STAMP24

**PRIMARY CARE INFORMATION FOR  
COMMUNITY, RURAL AND MIGRANT  
HEALTH**

Main Number ..... 703-821-8955x318

**RECRUITING**

Air Force ..... 800-423-8723  
Army ..... 800-872-2769  
Coast Guard  
<http://www.gocoastguard.com>  
General Information... 877-NOW-USCG  
Or ..... 877-669-8724  
Marine Corps ..... 800-MARINES  
Navy..... 800-872-6289  
Naval Reserve ..... 800-USA-USNR

**RUNAWAYS**

National Switchboard..... 800-621-4000

**RURAL DEVELOPMENT**

<http://www.rurdev.usda.gov>  
Cooperative services, loans and grants  
for rural housing, business development,  
utilities and community facilities.

**SCIENCE, SPACE AND TECHNOLOGY**

Earth Science  
USGS Science Information and  
Library Services..... 888-ASK-USGS

**SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION**

<http://www.sba.gov>  
General Information &  
Publications ..... 800-827-5722  
Inspector General  
Fraud, Waste & Abuse ... 800-767-0385  
Loan and Program Information  
Answer Desk ..... 800-827-5722

**SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION**

<http://www.socialsecurity.gov>  
For General Info and Svcs.  
Call 7am-7pm ..... 800-772-1213  
24-Hour Automated Services  
National TTY  
Only 7am-7pm ..... 800-325-0778

**STATE, DEPT OF**

Passports - See listing under Passports

**ST. LAWRENCE SEAWAY LOCK**

**OPERATIONS**  
General Information ..... 315-764-3200

**SUBSTANCE ABUSE AND MENTAL  
HEALTH SERVICES  
ADMINISTRATION**

General Information ..... 877-SAMHSA7

**TAXES**

Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms  
Federal Excise Tax ..... 877-882-3277  
Special Occupational Tax and  
Registration ..... 800-937-8864

**TRANSPORTATION, DEPT OF**

<http://www.dot.gov>  
General Information and Employee  
Locator 8am-5:30pm ..... 202-366-4000  
Federal Aviation Administration  
See listing under Federal Aviation  
Administration

Freedom of Information  
Act Office ..... 202-366-4542  
Inspector General  
Fraud, Waste & Abuse. 800-424-9071  
St. Lawrence Seaway Lock Operations  
See listing under St. Lawrence Seaway  
Lock Operations

**TRAVELERS' INTERNATIONAL  
HEALTH ADVISORY**

General Information ..... 877-394-8747

**TREASURY, DEPT OF**

<http://www.treas.gov>  
General Information ..... 202-622-2000

Taxpayer Advocacy Panel/Treasury  
Advisory Board To IRS .. 888-912-1227

**VACCINE INJURY COMPENSATION**

Information and Claims  
Hotline ..... 800-338-2382

**VETERANS AFFAIRS, DEPT OF**

<http://www.va.gov>  
Regional Office  
Benefits Info and Claims  
Assistance ..... 800-827-1000  
Education Benefits ..... 888-GI-BILL1  
TTY Hearing Impaired  
Info & Claims ..... 800-829-4833  
Business Opportunities with VA  
Small Business and Disadvantaged  
Business Utilization ..... 202-565-8124  
List of Contracts - See Internet  
<http://www.va.gov/osdbu>

Business Opportunities with VA for  
Veterans Only ..... 866-584-2344  
Center for Veterans  
Enterprise - CVE ..... 202-254-0233  
<http://www.vetbiz.gov>

TTY ..... 202-254-0234  
Gulf War Helpline..... 800-PGW-VETS  
Headstone & Grave Marker Information  
and Applications ..... 800-697-6947  
Inspector General  
Fraud, Waste & Abuse ... 800-488-8244  
Life Insurance ..... 800-669-8477  
Presidential Memorial  
Certificates ..... 202-565-4964

**VISITOR CENTERS**

Visitors Guide - National Recording  
Fish and Wildlife Service .. 800-344-9453

**VOLUNTEER OPPORTUNITIES**

<http://volunteer.gov/gov>

**WATER RESOURCES**

Reclamation, Bureau of  
<http://www.usbr.gov>  
USGS National Water  
Info Center..... 888-ASK-USGS

**WEATHER**

National Oceanic and Atmospheric  
Administration - NOAA  
National Weather Service  
<http://www.nws.noaa.gov>

**WILDLIFE**

See listing under Fish & Wildlife Service